
 

 

THE 

HISTORY OF 

 

1-3 BLUNHAM ROAD 

MOGGERHANGER 

 

Also known as 

 

THE OLD POST OFFICE AND SHOP 

 

Chris and Dorothy Bashford 



The house particulars were: 

 

 



Page 2 
 



Page 3 
 



 

We moved to Moggerhanger in August 

1989.  Thrilled to be living in such an 

ancient building, we set out to try to 

trace some of its history.   

 

Visits to the County Record Office in 

Bedford revealed some maps and  

photographs which are displayed here. 

 

We also inspected the Census Returns 

for the village between 1841 and 1891 to 

try to identify some of the people who 

lived here. 

 

We hope you will enjoy our delve into 

the past.  If anyone has more  

information about our house, please let 

us know. 



This map on the next page is dated 1799. 

“A Plan of Blunham Parish in the County of 

Bedford”  

Surveyed by Thos. Thorpe and J G Maxwell. 

Map was drawn to show enclosures. 

 

The house is clearly shown on land which 

had already been enclosed (shaded areas of 

the map). 

 

It was drawn on parchment, decorated 

around the edge and with a cameo of two 

haymakers in an oval. 

 

The original is in the  

County Record Office Ref: MA10



1799 Map 

 



The next section comprises extracts from the 

Census Returns for  

1841 and 1851 in  

“Muggerhanger”. 

 

The highlighted entries are those for families 

who we believe lived in the three cottages 

which once stood here. 

 

It is difficult to pinpoint exactly the 

residents of each of the three properties 

because there are no house numbers. 

 

However, if we take an entry for 

“Summerfield” we can follow it through….. 

 
 



On page 6 of the 1841 census (see next 

page) there are entries for: 

 

John Summerfield 

Age 40 

No profession is mentioned but all 

other entries on the page are for  

Agricultural labourers 

 

 

And 

Eliza Summerfield 

Age 30 

 

Both were born in Bedfordshire. 





In the 1851 census, page 7 shows (see 

next page): 

 

John Summerfield 

Head of family; Married; Age 51 

Occupation – Ratcatcher 

Born at Ickwell, Beds 

 

Eliza Summerfield 

Wife; Age 41 

Born in Muggerhanger 

 

Sarah Summerfield,  

Daughter; Age 9 

 

George Summerfield 

Son, Age 7 

Both born in Muggerhanger and  

described as being “at home”. 





In 1857 the Moggerhanger Estate was 

sold by auction in London on 4 August. 

 

As well as Moggerhanger House in its 

richly-timbered park,  two Public 

Houses (the Guinea and Beeston 

Cross), and a water corn-mill, the 29 

lots included 

 

“numerous laborers’ cottages and  

enclosures of accommodation & market 

garden land” 

 

Particulars for the auction are shown 

on the next page. 

 

Our house can be identified as one of 

these cottages. 



 



On the map accompanying the sale 

particulars (see next page), our house is 

clearly shown as No 130A (Part of Lot 1). 

 

It is described on the Schedule (see page 

after map) as: 

 

“Three cottages and Gardens in five Tenements. 

 

The tenants’ names were: 

 

John Simms 

Thomas Stanford 

J Summerfield* 

D Ashwell 

W Bywater





 



On page 11 of the census for 1861 (see next 

page), we see: 

 

John Summerfield 

Head of family; Married; Age 60 

Occupation: Ratcatcher 

 

Eliza Summerfield 

Wife: Age 51 

Occupation: Lace Maker 

 

George Summerfield 

Son: unmarried; Age 17 

Occupation: Ag Labourer 

 

We wonder what happened to Sarah (who 

would have been aged 20).  Had she got 

married perhaps? 



 



By the 1871census (see next page), both 

children were no longer living here as the 

only entries are: 

 

John Summerfield 

Head of family, Married; Age 71 

Occupation: Ratcatcher 

 

Eliza Summerfield 

Wife; Age 59 

Occupation: Lacemaker 



 



 

By 1881, the census records that Eliza was 

living here alone as the entry, under 

Morhanger cottages, (see next page) reads: 

 

Eliza Summerfield 

Head of Family; Widow; Age 71 

Born in Morhanger



 



In the 1891 census (see next page) the entries 

were more detailed. 
 

Eliza Summerfield 

Head of Family; Widow; Age 81 

Born in Muggerhanger 
 

George Summerfield 

Son, Single, Age 45 

Occupation: Ag Farmer Laborer 
 

We think it likely that the previous four 

entries also relate to this group of cottages, 

ie 

John Sims and family; Joseph Brown & 

family;Maryanne Ashwell &  

daughter; Thomas & Eliza Seymour  
 

At the 1901 census the house was occupied by 

George Daniels (more information about him 

later…) 





The following maps were copied at the 

County Record Office 

 

One of them is dated 1902 but we are 

not sure about the other two! 

 

Note that the school has changed its 

site between the first and second maps, 

the row of houses further down  

Blunham Road appears in the second 

but not the first map, and West Way 

does not appear on either! 





 





We found a wonderful “Book of  

Valuations” in the County Record  

Office, dated 1910. 

 

We think we have identified our  

property as one of five listed as  

belonging to Jarvis & Co (the Brewers 

who owned The Guinea and the fields 

adjoining). 

 

It is frustrating to see reference to a 

map – because no map is to be found 

now… 

 

We believe that George Daniels was the 

tenant of our house (see following 

entries). 



Another rich source of information was 

from a Rating Assessment  

carried out in 1925.  This time there is a 

map too... 

 

Our house is clearly entry No 146.  By 

that time George Daniels owned the 

house (two cottages knocked into one) 

and it is described as a House, Shop 

and Post Office.  The description is  

fascinating. 

 

We are sorry that when we bought the 

house the wash-house and barn were 

gone, but we are glad that the water 

closet is no longer a 2-bay shed in the 

garden! 

 

We have also copied the details of the 

other two cottages, Nos 147 and 148. 



In 1921 the house (actually  

two cottages in the occupation of  

Mr Daniels and Mrs Dora Agnes 

Street) was sold by Mrs Olive Melton 

to  

George Daniels for One Hundred 

Pounds. 

 

 

On the Indenture, there is reference to a 

previous transaction on 4 September 

1917 between Mary Jarvis and Henry 

Young on the on part and the Vendor 

(presumably Mrs Melton) on the 

other… 

 

We assume that this was when the 

property was sold by the Brewery. 



1931 – George Daniels died and the 

property passed into the ownership of 

Jane Ann Daniels who died in 1940 

Leaving it to her daughters Alice  

Martha Daniels and Ann Emma  

Lilburn.  Alice Daniels purchased the 

title in 1941. 

 

The House and Shop then changed 

hands quite frequently: 

1953 – I M Bennett 

1956 – I M Jackson 

1956 – E G & H A Eldridge 

1960 – D W Green 

1964 – Mr & Mrs D E Hammond 

1965 – F J Sutton 

1971 – Mr & Mrs A F Flack 

1976 – Mr & Mrs D A Green 

1984 – Mr & Mrs C E Mason 

1989 – Chris & Dorothy Bashford 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHOTOGRAPHS 



 

We know this photograph was taken 

before the fire in December 1954 which 

destroyed the other cottages.. 

What year was this?  The Mini might 

give us a clue! 



 

The house was re-thatched in 1987. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following photographs were taken 

by the Beds CC Photographic Unit (we 

believe in 1979) 



 

 

 



 

 



 

When we removed the shower from the 

bathroom we found what appears to be 

the remains of a bread oven.  

 

(There is a large inglenook fireplace on 

the other side of the wall)



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

    

 



FINALLY : A PUZZLE 

 

One of the County Archivists came to visit us 

in 1991 after we had paid several visits to 

the County Record Office.  We still wanted 

to know how old our house was. 

 

He drew us a plan of how the house might 

have looked when it was built (in 1563 or 

thereabouts).  He thinks it could have been a 

“hall house” with one floor up to the roof 

with the first floor being created in the 17th 

Century.  The need for stairs to the first floor 

would explain the odd position of the 

outside door in our sitting room.  The front of 

the house would have been a more modern 

addition (18th or 19th Century!) 

 

What do you think?? 

 



 


